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1. Name
historic James Turner House
and/or common same

2. Location

street & number 406 S, Washington Avenue —— not for publication
city,town  Marshall ' —vicinity of 18% congressional district
o a ' 03
state Lexas 75670 code O48 county Harrison c:ocle2
3. Classification
Category Ownership §tatus Present Use
— district —— pubiic —__ occupied - agriculture —  museum
—— building(s) _—_ private -—— unoccupied - commercial — park
= structure — _both —— work in progress — educational —— private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment — religious
— — object —in process X _ yes: restricted — government —_ scientiflc
—— being considered — yes: unrestricted — industrial -— transportation
——no — military — other:

4. Owner of Property

name Mrs, Bugene Gillespie

street & number 406 S, Wahington Avenue

city, town Marshall — vicinity of state Texas 75670

3. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Office of the County Clerk

street & number Zarrison County Courthouse

city, town Marshall state Lexas 75670

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title has this property been determined elegible? ___yes ___ no

exas Hiscoriecal Resource

sSurvey %
date ——-federal = state ____county ___ iocal

Texas Historical Ccmmission

depository for survey records

oity.town _ ustin : P state "exas 75711



7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

. excellent ___ deteriorated .. unaltered original site

X_ good ___ruins :X, altered A moved date 1928
—_ fair ____ unexposed

Describe the present and original {if known) physical appearance

The Turner House at 406 S. Washington Avenue was originally located
on Lot 1, Block 4 of the Original Townsite of Marshall, Texas where 1t
faced north on Crockett Street. It remained on Lot 1 until 1928 when 1t
was moved to the adjoining lot and its present locatlon, Lot 2, Block &4,

Constructed between 1850 and 1854, the one-story frame house had a
Greek Revival floor plan consisting of a central hall with two ldentical
or square rooms on elther side. It had a gable roof with two chimneys
and a fireplace 1n each of the four rooms. The house 1ls supported by
prick villars on which rest the original wooden Ceams, neasurling swelve
inches wide and thirty feet long.

The Greek Revival style appeared in Texas in the 1840's and remained
the major architectural style until 1870, DBlake Alexander states 1n his
ook The Texas Homes of the Nineteenth Century(p. 85-87): ‘Adaptabllity
and ease of simplification were the great advantages of the Greek Revival
style, It brought a harmony and a dignity to the simplest farm house, ..
The Early Texas house, which was a simple frame structure with a porch
across the front, was transformed with very little effort into a simple
Greek Revival house,"

The Turner House, when originally constructed, was embellished with a
front stoop in place of the usual extended front porch, Two columns
supported a classic pediment which was a Greek Revival feature. The
stoop was an attempt to represent the Greek Revival central portico which
framed and sheltered the front door, but did not extend the full width
of the house. The stoop or portico of the Turner House protected the
cnaracteristic single door opening into a central hall.,

The Turner House underwent several modlfications during the years.
In 1890, the stoop or central portico was incorporated into a porch
which extended across the front of the house, The porch, a major feature
of tne facade, exhivited characteristics of the popular Victorlan style
which first appeared in Texas 1ln the 1870's, Slender turned columms
supported the shed roof and pedimented gable, The verticality of the
Victorian style was further introduced by the use of four slender lights
in the top sash of the double-hung windows.

As the family grew, Mr, and Mrs. Turner bullt a separate frame
structure to the rear of the main house, It served as a dormitory for
their nine children, When the house was moved to its present location
in 1928, a shed additlon containing a bathroom, a kitchen and one other
room was attached to the rear of the house., It was constructed out of
lumker salvaged from the demolished dormlfSory tuilding,

irs., Zugene Gillespie, the granddaughter of James Turner, began
restoring the house in 1977. The composltion roof was replaced ty a
wood shingle roof, During restoration, the original shingle roof laid

over a primitive log claebh decklng was eiposed, he declking was supporited
ry rough-cut four-ty-six rafters instead of the two oy four rafters used
today. Tne shed addition was csenoved and a modern bathroom was installed

at the rear of the central hallway. he relocation of the bathroom 1is

the only significant modificatlon of the original interior design. The
original plaster walls and cellings were repaired. The front porcn was
restored to the 1890 period and the pedlimented gable covering the original
stoop was removed and a new shed roof was constructed,



8. Significance

Pericd Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric __ archeology-prehistoric __ community planning ___ landscape architecture____ religion

——1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic - conservation X jaw —science

—1500-1599 ___ agriculture — economics — literature —— Sscuipture

— 1600-1699 _X_ architecture —— education — military X __ sociai/

— 17001799 __ art — engineering —  music humanitarian

_* 18001899 ___ commerce — exploration;settlement ___ phiiosophy — theater

—— 1900~ — communications — industry — politics/government ___ transportation
— invention — other (specity)

Specific dates 1650~ 1854 Builder/Architect Bullder-G.G., Gregg

Stat t of Signifi in paragraph
*ente %Hefaggﬁge?“%ne of the oldest structures standing in Marshall,

contains characteristic elements of the Early Greek Revival style and its
transition into the Victorian. The Early Texas house, usually a
simple frame structure with a porch, lent itself to being adapted to the
classic forms of the Greek Revival style whilch appeared in Texas in the late
1840's, The style was well suited to the conditions of mid-nineteenth
century Texas. Due to transportation problems, the builder often manu-
factured the parts of the house on the site and the boldly scaled detalls

of the Greek Revival could be reproduced easily with a minimum expenditure o:
time and materials, The Turner House is representative of the movement
toward a more dignified home and away from the crude cabin. The House is
historically important because of its assoclation with two prominent
Marshall families, It has been owned and occupled for 125 years by the

G.G. Gregg and the James Turner famillies whose members were active in local
and state affairs, Although the structure has been removed from its origina.
8lte, the original design of the house has remained essentlally unaltered,
The Turner House deserves recognition not only for being one of the oldest
structures in Marshall, but for retaining its architectural integrity, as
well as,for its historical associlation with Important people who helped to
shape the development of Zast Texas.

George Gammon Gregg purchased lot 2, Block 4 in 1846 and built the
resldence now known as the Turner House about 1850 or 1851 for his bride,
Mary Ann Wilson. He and his wife lived in the house until 1854 when he
built a larger, more elaborate home and sold the house at 406 S, Washington
Avenue to his brother. Gregg was a merchant, financier and Confederate
procurement officer, His wlfe was the daughter of Rev. Thomas Wilson, a
President of the !lasonic Female Institute .

In 1866, James Turner purchased the nouse at 406 S, Washington Avenue
and 1t has remained in the Turner familly since that date. Turner, a natilve
of Sumner County, Tennessee, moved to Marshall in 1858 where he became '
one of the leading citizens., Turner was a self-educated man and studied
law 1n tne office of a brother-in-law in Tennessee. He was admitted to the
Tennessee Sar, tut emigrated to Marshall, Texas where he began practicing
law,

Turner married Zudora A, Knox, the daughter of Dr. and Mrs. XKnox
who owned a cotton plantation in the eastern portion of Harrison County.
Turner served in a regiment during the Civil War commanded by Col, Walter
P, Lane of Marshall and was elected lieutenant of his calvary company.
Records indicate he served in thils capacity for the remainder of the War
and'enjoyed such robust health that he was in all the rtattles in which dis
regiment participated”(Zncyclopvedia of tne New West, p. 441),

At the close of the War, Turner returned to Marshall, Family records
indicate that Turner won the title to the house at 406 S, Washington Avenue
in a one hour Sunday morning poker game, He moved hls family info the house

(P An! =



9. Ma_jor Bibliographical Refe_renées

Archives. Harrison County Historical Museun, Marshall, Texas

Genealoglical Records of the James Turner Family. In Possession of Mrs. J.H.
Hudson, Marshall, Texas.,.

Harrison County Deed Records, Harrison County Courthouse, Marshall, Texas.
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10. Geographical Data LETAY
Acreage of nominated property __One clity lot o
Quadrangie name Marshall East, Texas . Quadrangle scale 1:24000
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Verbal boundary description and justification

Lot 2, Zlock 4, Original Townslte of Marshall, Texas as defined in the
town nlat
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county ‘code

state code county . code

11. Form Prepared By

nameftite Moy S, Iale, Chairman; ILynn Osborne Robbitt, Consuliant
: N December 17, 1977
organization Sarrison County Historical Commis- 98 Revyised August 1, 1979
sion
street & number 3704 Fitzgerald; U410 King Williantelephone 214-938-2579; 512-227-780!

city or town Marshall 75670; San Antonio 78204  state Texasg
12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

___ national ____ state X__local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Pres
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and ce
according to the criterla and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation a

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

title State Historic Preservation Officer date August 24, 1979
For HCRS use only
| hereby certify that this prope

rty is ipcluded in the National Register
. it Ao 2005
Keeper of the National Register ; A

Avest 2/ Lo npema S D SIS R LY 0 /4s B T e
GhieterRugistsalion %
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and he lived there until his death in 1913,

Turner was a Democrat who was Interested in federal and state
politics, but never ran for an office other than that for mayor of
Marshall which he was elected to and served for four years, He was
also one of the directors and stockholders of the Southern Pacific
Railroad Company and he held those positions after the line was sold
to the Texas and Pacific Railroad Company, He served as the T&P's
principal attorney for many years., It was stated that "few of his
age have taken a more prominent part in the intricate and important
questlons, clivil and criminal, which have been before the courts of
the State "( Encyclopedia of the New West, p.Al4l).

Mrs, Eugene Gillesple, Turner's granddaughter, purchased the un-
divided interests in the house in 1977, Several years prior to this,
the Office of the Harrison County Charities occupied the house. Mrs.
Gillespie has completed the restoration of the house.
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The Encyclopedia of the New West. Marshall: Jennings Bros., 1881,
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James Turner House

406 S. Washington

Marshall, Harrison County, Texas

Photo by Danny Hardy, Texas
Historical Commission, 1979

West facade

Photo #1 w\ {

poe,
Ny T 1070 S



